
City
of
Espanola

Planning
and
Zoning
Department

405
North
Paseo
de
Onate

Espanola
NM
87532

505747
6061

August
11
2011

NAME
PLEASE
PRINT

PHONE
NUMBER

ck

5o5
6V

66

7

b3

Z rq

Pte

3
U
3z

r



Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

600
PM

City
Council
Chambers

405
North
Paseo
de
Onate
Espanola
NM
87532

The
Planning

Commission
Meeting

was
called
to

order
at

600
PM
by

Chairman
Erie
Wright
The

following
were
present Commissioners

Erie
Wright
Chairman

Laurie
Koontz
Vice
Chairwoman

Richard
Beaudoin

Amrit
Khalsa

Anissa
Martinez

Commissioner Absent

Sunee
Sandoval

Staff

Larry
Valdez
Planning

Technician

Isabelle
Martinez
Code
Enforcement
Officer

Item
II

Pledge
of
Allegiance

Chairman
Wright
led
the
Pledge
of
Allegiance

Item
III

Approval
of
Agenda

As
presented I

Call
to

Order

II

Pledge
of
Allegiance

III

Approval
of
Agenda

IV

Public
Concerns

V

Items
for
Consideration

1

Variance
Request
Adobe
in

Action
for
Habitat
for

Humanity
Ms
Agnes
Olsen

property
owner
are

requesting
a

variance
on

lot
size
dimensions
for
a

proposed

lot
split
and
variance
on

front
and
side
setbacks
for
a

proposed
site
built
home

located
at

1024
State
Road
76

The
property
is

zoned
R
1

Rural
Residential

District

VI

Approval
of
Minutes

June
9

2011

VII

Matters
from
the
Planning
Commission

VIII

Matters
from
the
Planning
Staff

IX

Adjournment
Chairman
Wright
asked
if

there
were
any

changes
to
the
agenda
Mr
Larry
Valdez
Planning
Technician

responded
no

Being
that
there

were
no

changes
the
agenda

was
approved
as

presented

Item
IV
Public
Concerns

None Item
V
Item
for
Consideration

1

Variance
Request
Adobe
in

Action
for

Habitat
for

Humanity
Ms
Agnes
Olsen

property
owner
are

requesting
a

variance
on

lot
size
dimensions
for
a

proposed
lot

split
and
a

variance
on

front
and
side
setbacks
for
a

proposed
site
built
home
located

at
1024
State
Road
76
The

property
is

zoned
R
1
Rural
Residential
District

Mr
Larry
Valdez
Planning
Technician
read
staffs
report
as

follows

Recommendations As
is

the
case
in

any
request
for
deviation
from
the
Development
Code
this
office

cannot
recommend

approval
though
each
request
is

approved
or

denied
based
on
its

own
merits

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

1



Executive
Summary

The
City
of
Espanola

Development
Code
Resolution
2004
20
Site

Development
Requirements
Single

Family
Residential
Districts
1

states

R1
Districts
required

Proposed

Lot
Area

43560
square

feet

14374
square

feet

Setbacks

50
Front
50
Rear
25
Sides

10
Front
90rear16

east
side

Lot
Coverage
35

13

In

reviewing
this

variance
request
the
Planning

Commission
shall
determine
whether
all
of
the
following

criteria
has
been
met
in

making
a

determination
of
approval
conditional
approval
or

denial

Sec156
Variance
review
criteria

a

The
practical
difficulty
or
unnecessary

hardship
is

inherent
to
the
lot
and
is

peculiar

because
of

size
shape

topography
or

some
other
characteristic
of
the
lot

which

differentiates
it

from
other
lots
in

the
vicinity
or
in

the
district
The
hardship

created

should
not
be
self
imposed

b

The
practical
difficulty
or

hardship
created
is

caused
by
a

strict
interpretation
of
the

provisions
of
this
Ordinance
is

not
self
imposed
and
is

not
generally
shared
by
other

lots
in

the
vicinity
or

the
district

c

The
granting
of

the

requested
variance
is

necessary
for

the

preservation
and

enjoyment
of

a

substantial
property
right
of
the
applicant
which
is

possessed
by

others
in

the
vicinity

d

The
granting
of
the
variance
sought
will
not
be

contrary
to
the

purpose
or

intent
of

this
Ordinance
or

injurious
to
property

within
100
feet
or

otherwise
detrimental
to

the
general
health
safety
or

general
welfare
of
the

community

Should
any
request
for

variance
not
meet
all
four
of
the
above
listed
criteria
the
Planning
Commission

shall
deny
the

request

Summary The
property
located
at

1024
State
Road
76
is

currently
considered
to
be
legal

non
conforming

as
far
as

zoning
standards
in

regards
to

lot

size
A

1975
warranty

deed
provided
to

this
office
indicated
the

property
exceed
the
minimum
lot
size
then
later
being
divided
to

create
a

63
acre
lot

Minimum
lot

sizes
in

this
zoning
district
should
be

one
acre
as

noted

Adobe
in

Action
began
utilizing
the

property
to

produce
adobe
bricks
in

2010
and
it

was
brought
to
our

attention
in

May
2011
that
the
organization

was
once

again
utilizing
the

property
to
produce
and
store

adobe
bricks
At
this
point
the

property
owners
were

contacted
whereupon
this
office

was
advised
of

their
plan

The
property
which
is

owned
by
Ms
Agnes
Olsen
Lujan
had
been
selected
to

participate
in

Adobe
in

Actions
mission
to

provide
affordable
and
sustainable
housing

The
proposed
lot
split
is

twofold
Ownership
of
the
property
is

required
by

Habitat
for
Humanity
for

their
involvement
in

the
construction
of
a

home
in

conjunction
with
Adobe
in

Action
Therefore
the

owner
is

proposing
to
split
the
lot
into
two
pieces
one
lot
will
be
13068
sf
30
acre
for
the
existing

home
the
other
will
be
14374
sf
33
acre
for
the
proposed
By
creating
the
proposed
lot
spilt
two

non
conforming
lots
will
be

created
both
of
which
will
not
meet
R
1

setback
standards
It

should
be

noted
that
within
the
immediate
vicinity
of
Santo
Nino
a

number
of

properties
do

not
meet
the
R
1

zoning
regulations
due
to
the
properties
being
annexed
in

the
late
1980s
If

this
request
for
lot
split
is

approved
by
the
Commission
then
the

request
for
variance
on

setbacks
for
the
dwelling
may
be
heard

The
property
is

currently
served
by
City
of
Espanola
water
and

wastewater
service
consisting
of
two
2

hookups
It

should
be
noted
that
there

was
a

dwelling
unit
on

this
property
that

was
destroyed
by
fire
in

June
2007
This
would
refer
to
Article
IV
Section
304
Nonconforming
Structures
which

states
Should

this
structure
be

destroyed
by

any
means
to

an

extent
of

more
than
50

percent
of
the
most
recent

county
assessors
full
value
or

market
value
of
the

structure
at
the
time
of
destruction
it

shall
not
be

reconstructed
except
in

conformity
with
the
provisions
of
this
Ordinance

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

2



Conditions
of
Approval

1

A

Legal
Survey
must
be

obtained
reviewed
and
recorded
prior
to

construction
of
the

structure
2

Applicant
must
address
the
existing

excavation
of
the
lot
and
reclaim
any

mined
or

excavated
areas

3

The
lot
must
be
cleaned
to
the
satisfaction
of
Code
Enforcement

within
30
days

4

Applicant
must
ascertain
a

written
contract
with
Habitat
for
Humanity
within
30
days

Comments This
office
has
not
received
any
response

from
adjoining
neighbors
or

neighborhood
groups

regarding

this
request Commissioner

Beaudoin
asked
what
the
relationship

between
Adobe
in

Action
and
Ms
Agnes
Olsen

property
owner
was
in

the
application

process
Mr
Mike
Lopach
Adobe
in

Action
stated
they

are
in

charge
of
the
project
and
Ms
Olsen
is

the
property

owner
He
added
that
Habitat
for

Humanity
is

also

involved Mr
Lopach
stated
that
Adobe
in

Action
is

a

New
Mexico

non
profit

organization
that
is

actively
pursuing

its
501
C3
federal

status
He
added
that
they

are
currently
engaged
in
a

fiscal
sponsorship

arrangement

with
the
New
Mexico
Community
Foundation
He
stated
that
this
allows
them
to
operate
using
their

federal
tax
ID

number
and
seek
out

financial
contributions
that

are
fully
tax
deductible

Mr
Lopach
stated
that
Adobe
in

Action
is

organized
around
the
following

principles

Promote
economic
and

community
development
through
affordable
adobe
home

building Encourage
community
participation
and

volunteer
opportunities
in

efforts
to

help

alleviate
poverty

Provide
educational
stewardship
regarding
the

economic
cultural
and
environmental

advantages
of
adobe
home
building
and
ownership

Mr
Lopach
added
that
Adobe
in

Action
in

coordination
and
partnership
with
other
entities

promote

access
to

affordable
housing
Their
efforts
offer
not
only
affordable
housing
but
also
quality
sustainable

and
energy

efficient
housing

Mr
Lopach
stated
that
he
and
Mr
Rocky
Olsen

are
both
former
students
of
the
Northern
New
Mexico

College
Adobe
Construction

program
He
added
that
Mr
Olsens
grandfathers
house
had
burned
and

they
would
like
to

replace
the
home
for
Mr
Olsen
and
his
family
Mr
Lopach
stated
that
Mr
Olsen

currently
lives
with
his

mother
and
there

are
seven

people
living
in

a

two
2

bedroom
one
1

bath

home
He
added
that
the
mobile
home
is

not
energy

efficient
Mr
Lopach
stated
that
most
of
the
work

is

done
with
volunteers
The
design
of
the
home

was
prepared
by
Mr
Mark
Chalom
solar
architect
and

he
donated
the
plans

Mr
Lopach
stated
that
the

property
currently
belongs
to

Ms
Agnes
Olsen
however
she
is

willing
to

deed
the

property
to

her
son

Rocky
Mr
Lopach
added
that
Habitat
for
Humanity
requires
that
the

property
belong
to

Mr
Rocky
Olsen
prior
to
applying
for
financing

Commissioner
Koontz
asked
why
Ms
Agnes
Olsen

was
not
present
at

the
meeting
Mr
Lopach
stated

that
she

was
unable
to

change
her
work
schedule

Commissioner
Beaudoin
stated
that
he

had
conducted
a

site
visit
and
asked
how

many
adobes
have

already
been
made
Mr
Lopach
stated
there

are
approximately
4500
to

5000
adobes
on

the
property

Commissioner
Beaudoin
asked
how

many
adobes

were
needed
for
the
project
Mr
Quentin
Wilson

Adobe
Instructor
stated
approximately
6000
adobes
would
be
needed

Commissioner
Beaudoin
asked
how
long
they
had
been
working
on

the
project
before
the
city
became

involved
Mr
Lopach
stated
they
had
been
working
since
2010
Commissioner
Beaudoin
informed
Mr

Lopach
that
in

the
future
they
contact
the
city
prior
to

commencing
any

other
projects
Mr
Lopach

stated
that
city
staff
has
been

very
helpful

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

3



Commissioner
Beaudoin
stated
that
Mr
Olsen
had
four
4

children
and
the
yellow
ribbon

was
not

sufficient
enough
to
protect
them
from
falling
in

the
excavated

area

Chairman
Wright
opened
the
public
hearing
at
620
PM

Mr
Wilson
stated
that
Mr
Lopach
and
Mr
Olsen

were
both
former

students
and
Mr

Lopach
has

approached
him
in

starting
a

non
profit
organization
He

added
that
he
would
like
to

see
the
house

built
the
only
project
they
have
done
is

an

addition
in

Hernandez
Most
of

the
work
is

done
by

volunteers
though
there
is

a

small
fee
for
drafting
the
house
Mr
Wilson
added
that
Mr
Olsen
would

like
to

reconstruct
his
grandfathers
house
that
burned
Mr
Wilson
stated
that
all
the
material
to

make

the
adobes

was
hauled
from
another
location
He

would
like
approval
for
this

request
in

order
to

proceed
with
the
funding

application
He

added
that
Habitat
requires
that
the
property
be

in

Mr

Olsens
name
in

order
to

qualify
for
funding

Mr
Tim
Martinez
stated
that
he
is

representing
his

parents
who
reside
at
1030
State
Road
76
and
to
the

east
of
the
proposed

property
He
expressed

concern
on

the
setback
to
the
east
side
Chairman
Wright

stated
that
the
house
will
be

approximately
16
feet
from
the

property
line

He
added
that
the
burnt

home
was

actually
closer
to

the

property
line

Mr
Martinez
asked
if

the
lot

split
is

approved
if

construction
could
be
done
on

the
other
lot

Chairman
Wright
stated
that
all

construction
would
have

to
request
approval
from
the

commission

Commissioner
Koontz
asked
Mr

Martinez
how
they
felt

about
the

proposed
project
Mr

Eppie

Martinez
adjacent

property
owner

stated
that
he

is

not
against
the
project
and
Mr
Olsen
is

a

good

neighbor
Mr
Martinez
stated
that
he
only
needed
additional
information

Commissioner
Khalsa
stated
that
it

appears
that
this

area
was

zoned
without
any

research
being
done

Most
of
the

properties
do
not
meet
the
requirements
forthe
R
1
zoning
district

Mr
Lopach
stated
that
Ms
Yvonne
Maestas
Rios
Executive
Director
for

Habitat
for
Humanity

was

unable
to
attend
the
meeting
however
he
read
the
following
letter

August
10
2011

Dear
Espanola
Planning
and
Zoning

It

is

our
organizations
mission
that
every

man
woman

and
child
should
have
a

decent
safe
and

affordable
place
to
live
In

this
vein
we
are

happy
to
write
this
letter
of

support
for
Adobe
in
Action
and

the
proposed
home
building
activity
at
1024
State
Route
76
in

Espanola
NM
Just
like

our
organization

Adobe
in
Action
is
committed
to
assisting
families
and

communities
by
making
quality
housing
available

to
those
with
fewer

resources

Adobe
in

Action
approached
our

organization
at

the

beginning
of

the
summer

with
a

proposal
to

collaborate
on

the
financing
and
construction
of
a

passive
solar
adobe
home
We
are

interested
because

the

presented
model
for

home
building
involves

components
that
we

already
count
important

volunteerism
community
development
cultural
heritage
and

sweat
equity
After

more
than

one

meeting
with
Adobe
in
Action
board
members
we

agreed
to
accept
an

application
from
the
Olsen
family

residing
at
1024
State
Route
76
and
determine
if
they
qualify
for
a

Habitat
loan

At
this
point
we

have
yet
to

qualify
the
application
When

we
complete
this

process
and
if
the
family

indeed
qualifies

we

will
be

giving
very

serious
consideration
to

entering
into
a

formal
collaborative

agreement
with
Adobe
in

Action
to

build
a

home
with
the
family
the
Olsens
at

the
site
you
are

considering
this
evening
One
point
that
is

important
to
our

organization
is

that
the
land
on

which
the

home
is

to
be
built
be
in

the
name
of
Rocky
Olsen
It

is

currently
under
his
mothers

name
Agnes
Lujan

Olsen
If
the
variance
is
granted
to
create
a

separate
non

conforming
lot
of
record
and
the
land
is

then

subsequently
deeded
from
Agnes
to
Rocky
we

would
then
be
able
to

build
on

the
lot

We
appreciate
the
attention
you
are

focusing
on

the
efforts
taking
place
with
Adobe
in

Action
We
feel

that
these
efforts
assist
communities
in

becoming
healthier

stronger
and

more
unified
Please
feel
free

to
contact
me

with
any

questions
or
concerns

Sincerely s Yvonne
Maestas
Rios

Executive
Director

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

4



Habitat
for

Humanity
EVLA

505
747
2690

Being
that
there

was
no
more

public
input
Chairman
Wright
closed
the
public
hearing
at
633
pM

Chairman
Wight
stated
that
it

is

encouraging
to
see

the
college
revive
the
building
tradition
He
added

that
there

are
a

lot

of

problems
with
zoning
in

that
area

Chairman
Wright
asked
if

there
were
any

provisions
in

the
code
regarding
family
transfers
Mr
Valdez
responded

no

Chairman
Wright
stated

that
state
statute
addresses
family
transfers
Mr
Valdez
stated
that
that
section
of
the
state
statue
has

not
been
adopted
into
the
city
code
Chairman
Wright
stated
that
requirements
for
the
R
1

zoning

district
are
not
met
in

this
area

Chairman
Wright
asked
if

the
proposed
house
would
be

a

single
story

Mr
Olsen
responded

yes

Chairman
Wright
asked
Mr
Olsen
why
he

was
proposing
a

front
setback
of

only
ten
feet
10

Mr

Olsen
stated
he

would
be
refilling
the
existing
pit
with
organic
material
and
would
be

extending
this

garden
Mr
Olsen
stated
he
would
like
to
utilize
his
irrigation
rights

Chairman
Wright
suggested
that
if

approved
that
the
utility
lines
be
relocated
to

the
driveway
He
also

suggested
the
utility
and

access
easements
be
plotted

on
the

survey

Mr
Valdez
stated
that
if

the
lot
split
is

granted
access
to
the
property
must
be
provided
prior
to
being

approved
He
added
that
the
ingress
egress

easement
must
be
twelve
12
to
sixteen
16
feet
wide

Chairman
Wright
asked
what
the
height
of
the
north
wall
will
be

Mr
Olsen

responded
approximately

eleven
feet
11
Chairman
Wright
stated
that
the
proposed
home
should
not

interfere
with
the
solar

access
to
the
mobile
home
south
side
already

on
the
property

Commissioner
Khalsa
stated
that
the
solar
should
not
be
impeded
because
there
is

sufficient
amount
of

room
Mr
Lopach
stated
that
the
south
side
of
the
existing
mobile
home
only
has
a

small
window
with

an
air
conditioner Commissioner

Koontz
stated
she

agrees
with
Chairman
Wright
that
this

project
is

good
for

the

community
to

preserve
the
culture
and
utilize
the

acequias
for
agricultural

use

Commissioner
Koontz
asked
about
the

501
C
3

Mr

Lopach
stated
that
they
are

a

non
profit

organization
recognized
in

New
Mexico
by

the
Public
Regulations
Commission
however
they

are

working
on

getting
recognized
federally
Being
recognized
federally
will
allow
Adobe
in

Action
to

receive

tax
deductible
donations

Commissioner
Beaudoin
asked
who
carries
insurance
for

the

project
He

asked
if

it

was
the

homeowners
responsibility
Mr
Lopach
stated
that
the

contractor
will

carry
insurance

Commissioner
Beaudoin
asked
if

the
project

was
approved
if
the
30
days
would
be
sufficient

amount
of

time
to
clean
the
property
Mr
Lopach
stated
that
they

were
comfortable
with
that
time
line

Commissioner
Khalsa
moved
to

approve
the
variance
request

from
Adobe
in

Action
for
Habitat
for

Humanity
Ms
Agnes
Olsen
property
owner
on
lot
size
dimensions
for
a

lot
split
and
on

front
and

side
setbacks
for
a

site
built
home
located
at
1024
State
Road
76
with
the
following
conditions

1

A

Legal
Survey
must
be
obtained
reviewed
and
recorded
prior
to

construction
of
the

structure
2

Applicant
must
address
the
existing
excavation
of
the
lot
and
reclaim
any

mined
or

excavated
areas

3

The
lot
must
be
cleaned
to
the
satisfaction
of
Code
Enforcement
within
30
days

4

Applicant
must
ascertain
a

written
contract
with
Habitat
for

Humanity
within
30
days

Commissioner
Koontz
seconded
the
motion

Commissioner
Beaudoin
asked
if

30
days

was
sufficient

amount
of
time
to
obtain
a

written
contract
with

Habitat
for

Humanity
He

stated
additional
time

may
be

required
if

Habitat
does
not
approve
Mr

Olsens
application

Commissioner
Khalsa
asked
why
a

30
day
time
line

was
set
by
staff
and
not
60
days

Mr
Valdez
stated
that
30
days
is

a

sufficient
amount
of
time

Commissioner
Martinez
asked
if

including
the

easements
on

the

survey
would
be

added
to

the

conditions
of
approval

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011

5



Commissioner
Khalsa

amended
his
motion
to

change
the
30
day
time
line
for
funding
to
60
days
and

strongly
suggested
that
the

easements
be
included
in

the
survey

Commissioner
Koontz
amended
her

second
to
the
motion
Motion
carried
by
a5
0
vote

Chairman
Wright
stated
this
is

a

very
positive
project
for
the
community

Item
VI
Approval
of
Minutes

Commissioner
Khalsa
moved
to

approve
the
minutes
from
the
June
9

2011
Planning

Commission

meeting
as

presented
Commissioner
Beaudoin

seconded
the
motion
Motion
carried
by
a5
0
vote

Item
VII
Matters
from
the
Planning

Commission

Commissioner
Khalsa
stated
that
there

are
several
zoning

areas
that

are
not

conforming
He
suggested

that
a

study
be

conducted
of
these

areas

Commissioner
Koontz
asked
if

a

work
session
would
be

scheduled
to

discuss
the
mobile
home
park

regulations
Chairman
Wight
stated
there
is

only
one
case
for
the

meeting
in

September
he

suggested

having
the
work

session
after
the
meeting

Commissioner
Koontz
asked
if

the
application
for
the
Adopt
a

Median
have
been
finalized
Mr
Valdez

stated
he
would
check
with
Ms

Berlinda
Trujillo
Code
Enforcement
Officer

Commissioner
Martinez
asked
if
the

vacant
position
for

commissioner
was

going
to
be
filled
Mr
Valdez

stated
that
Ms
Olga
Garcia
had
been
appointed
however
he
is

unaware
why
she
has
not

attended
the

meetings Commissioner
Martinez
asked
if
the
work
session
would
be
to
discuss
the
mobile
home
park
regulations

only
or

will
it

also
include
abandoned
building
Chairman
Wright
responded
it

will
include
both
issues

Item
VIII
Matters
from
the
Planning

Commission

None Item
IX

Adjournment Commissioner
Khalsa
moved
to

adjourn
the
meeting

Commissioner
Koontz
seconded
the
motion

Motion
carried
by
a

5
0
vote
Meeting
adjourned
at
715
PM

Chairman

Date

Secretary

Date

Planning
Commission
Meeting

August
11
2011


